CORENet Phase 1 – Draft RFP – Questions and Answers

Solicitation # HC1047-08-R-4002


1. Is it possible for DISA to send a list of the companies that responded to the
CORENet Phase I Pre-Solicitation notice, so that we can interface with them regarding a teaming arrangement?  (Submitted: 2/25/08)
The vendors listed below responded to DISA’s CORENet Phase I Pre-Solicitation notice:

All Native Systems

Alutiiq, LLC

OakTree Enterprise Solutions, Inc.

ActioNet, Inc.

Global Analytic IT Services (GAITS)

Intact Technology, Inc.

Buccaneer Computer Systems & Service, Inc.

MicroTechnologies, LLC

InScope Solutions, Inc.

NOVA Corp.

DasNet Corp.

*This document only includes respondents who have given their authorized consent to be included on this list.

2. Has DISA already down selected a list of 8(a) contractors who will be allowed to respond to this RFP?  (Submitted: 2/26/08)
No, this acquisition is being competed using the Advisory multi-step process in accordance with FAR 15.202.  Respondents to the Pre-Solicitation notice were advised by the Government in writing either that they will be invited to participate in the resultant acquisition or, based on the information submitted, that they are unlikely to be a viable competitor.  This is advisory in nature and does not preclude any contractor from submitting a proposal in response to the RFP.

3. Who is the incumbent contract holder/provider of services for DISANet? (Submitted: 2/29/08)
The incumbent contract holder for DISANet services is Anvicom, Inc.
4. Is Anvicom, Inc. an eligible 8(a) company? (Submitted: 3/3/08)

No, Anvicom has “graduated” from the 8(a) program and is no longer eligible.

5.  L.3.0 VOLUME III – FACTOR 4, PAST PERFORMANCE states “The Offeror shall provide as evidence of relevant past performance for evaluation by the Government team, no more that five (5) recent contracts or task orders proposed by itself or by a proposed subcontractor…..” while L.3.2 Section 2-Customer assessment states “  For each of the four-identified past performance efforts ….”  Are all of the contracts cited in Factor 4 to be included in customer assessments or only four of them? (Submitted: 3/5/08)
This is an oversight; we will correct the RFP language.  The correct number of maximum past performance efforts that will be evaluated is five.
6. L.3.0 VOLUME III – FACTOR 4, PAST PERFORMANCE states “Offerors are cautioned to submit only past performance data performed by the small business or performed by a team member that is also a small business in order to be considered for award.” (Submitted: 3/5/08)
6.a  Does this mean the prime is precluded from having a large business as a minority share teammate?
This statement is in error and will be amended.  The team member can be a large business; Small Business rules only require that 51% of the personnel costs be borne by the prime small business.
6.b  If not, is this only for evaluation purposes?
Relevant past performance efforts from large business partners will be evaluated.  However, the partner must be a critical partner (as defined by the Offeror), and, if it is a large business, the past performance must be by the business unit that is partnering with the Offeror.  The RFP will be amended to reflect these criteria.
6.c  If a large business is not prohibited from participating as a subcontractor, how will their past performance be evaluated?
The same performance, recency and relevancy criteria will be applied to the past performance of any partner; along with the additional relevancy criteria per the answer to 6.b.  However, in accordance with M.3.3.1, past performance as a prime contractor will be weighted more than performance as a subcontractor, and past performance by the Offeror will be weighed more than past performance by a subcontractor.
7. Draft Request for Proposal (DRFP), page 18, Table 1: Note 4 applied to Service Level Management and Workforce Management contradicts their inclusion in the Performance Work Statement (PWS) template. Is the note in error or should the PWS template be revised? (Submitted: 3/6/08)
These are to be addressed in the PWS.  Their definition in the DRFP table on page 18 will be corrected to reflect that they are shared, but would not be addressed by SLAs or performance metrics.
8. DRFP, page 18, paragraph 3 states that for the purpose of the Statement of Objectives (SOO), the contractor should assume the vast majority of the work performed on this contract will be conducted “on-site” in Government spaces. All verbiage in the paragraph is consistent with that statement except for the middle sentence which states no Government Furnished Equipment (GFE) will be provided. Does the GFE statement require revision?
This statement requires clarification, and will be amended to indicate that no GFE will be provided to the contractor for use at off-site (non-Government) facilities.
9. DRFP, page 17 and page 18, Table 1, defines responsibilities for Service Management Functions (SMF) within the Microsoft Operations Framework (MOF). Inconsistencies between this table and the CORENet Field Site Responsibility Matrix, Overall Responsibility under CORENet column, at Attachment 2, page 1, were found in the areas listed below. Please clarify which responsibility is correct (“shared with a specific note” or “contractor”). 

Comparison Table: Derived from Attachment 2, Page 1 

	MOF Quadrant 
	Function 
	Responsibility, Table 1 
	Responsibility, Field Site Matrix 

	Supporting 
	Incident Management 
	Shared (Note 2) 
	Shared (Note 1) 

	Optimizing 
	Availability Management 
	Shared (Note 1) 
	Contractor 

	Optimizing 
	Capacity Management 
	Shared (Note 2) 
	Contractor 

	Optimizing 
	IT Service Continuity 
	Shared (Note 1) 
	Shared (Note 3) 


Responsibilities are correct as listed in the MOF Table in Section I.C of the Statement of Work (pages 17 and 18 of 91).  The CORENET Field Site Responsibility Matrix in Appendix J-2 will be amended.
10. DRFP, page 20: Please explain what “Achieve a balance between contractor accountability and Government insight” means. How will success in this be measured? 
This statement will be deleted.
11. DRFP, page 69: As only individuals, not organizations, can hold ITIL certifications or awards, is it the Government’s desire to have companies list how many individual ITIL certifications are held by its employees and those of its teammates?
Yes, the Offeror should provide a total number, if possible.  In addition, the Offeror may discuss the relevancy of these certifications and awards – will the individuals be part of the CORENet support team, and if the partner is a large business, do the personnel belong to the business unit that will be teaming with the Offeror? 
12. DRFP, page 81: “Network Management” subfactor: Is it “Network Management” or “Network Monitoring” (see page 83, M.3.1.5)? 
The references to “Network Management” on pages 81 and 82 are incorrect; they should read “Network Monitoring”, and the RFP will be amended.
13. DRFP, page 86: Element 1: Can subcontractor qualifications count here as well? Also, see Question 11 above referencing organizational versus individual ITIL certifications from RFP page 69. 
Yes, qualifications of personnel from critical subcontractors are applicable.
14. Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) for Field Site Administration: Does the Government intend to finalize this document and include it in the final RFP posting? 
Yes, the Government intends to finalize this document and include the latest version in the final RFP posting.
15. Will the Government disclose how it plans to assess and audit the limitation of profit/fee to 12% as this is unusual for Firm Fixed Price (FFP) acquisitions?
The limitation of profit/fee to 12% will be dropped.
16. How does the Award Fee apply to subcontractors and how will it be evaluated?
Since the prime contractor is responsible for the performance of their subcontractors, the Government award fee plan will make no distinction between the performance of the prime and the subcontractors.  Note that the subcontractors’ performance will be attributable to the prime contractor.  The award fee will be evaluated in accordance with the award fee plan attached to the RFP and finalized with contract award.
17. Operating Level Agreements–Can we assume that the functions of CORENet will be structured so that at some level, all sub functions are either purely Government or purely contract partner, and that Operational Level Agreements (OLAs) and Service Level Agreement (SLAs) will define performance at these boundaries? 
It is the intent that all sub-functions will be either purely Government or purely contract partner, and OLAs are meant to define performance at these boundaries.  SLAs are meant to define overall level of performance of the contractor functions.
18. If so, how will these SLAs and OLAs be derived initially and then evolve over time? 
Per Section L.2.3, the Offerors will be required to develop and propose the SLAs and OLAs.  If agreed to by the Government and the contractor, SLAs and OLAs may be re-baselined no more than once a year.  This provision will be incorporated into the contract.  

19. Will DISA disclose how they will audit Labor Rates as they relate to a FFP contract as this is not typical for a FFP or performance-based contracts?
Section L.4.2 does not state that the Government will audit Labor Rates, but that the Government anticipates validating rates.
20. CORENet Phase I and Phase II. Can we assume that this procurement only addresses Phase I, in terms of both evaluation criteria and scope/duration? If this procurement includes Phase II, how will this be evaluated and how will it be contracted?
Yes, this procurement addresses Phase I only.
21. DRFP, page 70 L.3.1: In stating “the five-identified prime contractor past performance efforts,” in the first sentence, an inconsistency is reflected with the lead sentence of L.3.0, which states that the no more than five (5) recent past performances can have been performed by the Offeror or a proposed subcontractor. Please confirm whether allowable past performances must have been performed by the prime alone or does a combination of prime- and/or subcontractor-performed contracts or task orders satisfy the past performance requirements?
A combination of prime- and/or subcontractor-performed contracts or task orders will satisfy the past performance requirements.  The first sentence in Section L.3.1 will be amended to reflect this.  Although no more than five past performance efforts submitted by the Offeror will be evaluated by the Government, the Government reserves the right to review any other past performance data it deems relevant.  Please be reminded that, per Section M.3.3.1 of the RFP, past performance as a prime contractor will be weighted more than performance as a subcontractor, and past performance by the Offeror will be weighted more than past performance by a subcontractor.
22. DRFP, page 70: Teammates provide valuable team credentialing in critical skills associated with performance-based and managed services of the type, scope, and complexity envisioned for CORENet, particularly as the prime maps the course to Phase II. For this reason, we recommend that at least one past performance from teammates be authorized for consideration in evaluating a teams past performance. 

See the answer to #21.
23. L.3.0 requires that past performance must have been ongoing for a minimum of 9 months from date of issuance of the RFP. In order to provide a more realistic assessment of an Offeror’s past performance, we request that the requirement be changed from date of issuance of the RFP to the proposal due date. We believe that this will give DISA a more accurate and up-to-date past performance to evaluate. 

The final RFP will reflect that past performance must have been ongoing for a minimum of 9 months from the proposal due date.
24. DISA is moving to a brand new contract with PBC and SLAs. From past experience transitioning from T&M to FFP PBC contracts, a smooth transition is critical to success. Because of this significant change, we recommend that DISA increase the evaluation criteria weight of the Phase-In and Transition Approach Subfactor to be equal to the Services Provisioning Management Subfactor. 
The DRFP Section M language provides adequate importance to the Phase-In and Transition Approach Subfactor.

25. Currently, it appears that DISA is offering Orals, but not evaluating them. We recommend that DISA include Orals as part of the evaluation as this typically benefits the customer in better understanding the merits of each proposer team.
The Government intends to include a provision in the final RFP that will include the statement “Information presented during the oral presentation may be used by the Government to augment the written proposal, if it is supported by a contemporaneous record”.
26. We hold a Secret and Interim Top Secret company clearance however we plan to team with a strategic partner who holds a Top Secret Facility clearance, is this OK or meet the requirement using their facility?
To clarify, classified storage space is not required.  A Top Secret company and facility clearance is required in support of providing Top Secret-cleared personnel.  The RFP will be amended to reflect the correct requirement.


27. Page 22 of 91: Item 6 discusses “DevelopNet” stating that a new secure enclave called “DevelopNet” will be deployed to support the development community.  

Who is the contractor doing the development of the "DevelopNET" enclave, or is it being developed in house by the Government?
DevelopNet is a task being performed jointly by Government and Anvicom contractor resources.

.   

What does “DevelopNet” look like?
DevelopNet will be a separate domain within the enterprise CORENet IT infrastructure.  It is a means of supporting “engineering” workstations on an operational network without impacting the corporate services (e-mail, business apps, etc.) of CORENet.  Separate DevelopNet enclaves will be set up at CORENet facilities, sharing the backbone network and WAN connections, but isolated from the “business” CORENet through firewalls, VLANs, etc.
Do we need to specifically address it in our submission?
No.  It has been identified as a task and infrastructure not identified in the technical architecture that the contractor would support through its engineering, technology insertion, change management, network monitoring, and other such functions.

Without this data, Offerors will not be able to provide this support.
28. Page 15 of 91: The second paragraph refers to Appendix A, which contains network diagrams of the current DISANet architecture.  Attachment A was not found in the DRFP package.  Is Attachment A different from Attachment J.1, CORENet Technical Architecture? Will network diagrams be provided?
The reference should be to Attachment J.1, the technical architecture, and will be corrected.  It is still to be determined if specific network information and diagrams can be publicly released as part of Attachment J.1.
29. Page 15 of 91: The fourth paragraph refers to reference materials provided as attachments to the RFP.  Are all such reference materials contained in the draft RFP?  If not, what additional materials will be provided, and when?

Additional material will not be provided for the draft RFP.  Additional material will be provided for the final RFP, but the details have not been finalized.  This information may include additional detail on existing work processes, FTEs, existing resource mapping to SMFs and Role Quadrants, a CDRL, and a more detailed breakout of the contractor/Government responsibilities for shared SMFs.  Additional network information, such as network diagrams or inventories, will be included if it can be released to the public.

30. Page 16 of 91: Will the activities of Phase 2, once determined, be executed as a part of this contract, or will there be a separate procurement for Phase 2? If so, will it be full & open or a small business set aside?
Phase 2 activities will not be executed as part of this contract.  Because the scope and nature of Phase 2 requirements have not been determined, and may change greatly from those of Phase 1, we cannot identify the nature of the acquisition at this time.
31. Page 18 of 91: The third paragraph states that for the purpose of this SOO, the contractor shall assume that the vast majority of work to be done under this contract will be conducted on site in Government spaces.  To ensure a level playing field, will the Government consider changing the statement to read that the contractor shall assume that all of the work will be conducted on site in Government spaces?
We must leave open the possibility that possible exigencies would require work to be done outside of Government spaces.      

32. Page 19 of 91: Paragraph C.4. calls for Earned Value analysis and management for tasks that are not fixed priced, yet all the labor CLINs for this contract are FFP.  Please clarify.
Page 19 Paragraph C.4 will be changed to state that Earned Value analysis and management will be used for all CLINS.
33. Page 70 of 91: The first paragraph of section L.3.0 states that the Offeror shall provide no more than five (5) recent contracts or task orders performed by itself or by a proposed subcontractor.  It further states that Offerors are cautioned to submit only past performance data performed by the small business Offeror or performed by a team member that is also a small business, in order to be considered for award. However, in the first paragraph of section L.3.1 it states that for each of the five‑identified prime contractor past performance efforts, the Offeror shall provide the data identified below and in Attachment J.12.  Please Clarify?
The requirement for past performance to be from a small business is incorrect, and this statement will be amended.  The only stipulation regarding past performance from a non-small business partner is that the past performance must be by the same business unit that will be teamed with the Offeror.  The RFP will also be amended to state this.
34. Page 75 of 91:  The last sentence of paragraph L.7 states that oral presentations will be given by the Offeror’s Program Manager and/or other key personnel.  Are we to assume that there will be no limit placed upon the number of people allowed to participate in the oral presentation?
Up to five contractor personnel can participate in the oral presentations.  Paragraph L.7 will be amended to state this.   

35. Page 76 of 91: Under the section titled 52.204‑9103 MANDATORY SECURITY REQUIREMENT, the first line of paragraph b. states that all personnel assigned to this contract must be United States citizens and must have been granted a Top Secret clearance. Will interim Top secret clearance suffice?
Yes, interim Top Secret clearance will suffice.  Please note that only selected personnel assigned to the contract will require Top Secret clearance; the RFP will be amended to reflect this. Please refer to Question #47 for more detailed information on personnel security and access requirements.
36. Attachment J.1:  Will detailed lists of Configuration Items for the existing networks, equipment and software be provided, and if so, when?
The Government intends to provide additional configuration information with the final RFP.  We are determining what level of detail can be provided under existing DoD Information Assurance requirements.
37. Attachment J.6:  Paragraphs 4.1.2 and 4.1.5.3 describe two different processes for the contractor to present a self‑assessment for award fee consideration.  Please clarify?
There are not two different processes.   As stated in the draft award fee plan, if the contractor chooses they may present a written self-assessment that will not exceed 3 pages.  The contractor may also request to provide an oral self-evaluation but the decision to grant the oral presentation will be made by the Fee Determining Official and/or the Award Fee Review Board chairman.

38. Attachment J.6:  Attachment 5, page 21 of 24, shows a contract structure of one base year and four option years.  This conflicts with the DRFP, page 2 of 91, which specifies a two‑year base period and three option years.  Please clarify?
Per the RFP, page 2 of 91, the correct structure is a two year base period and three one year options.  Attachment 5 of J.6 will be corrected in the final RFP.
39. Page 16 of 91: Given that the Microsoft Operations Framework is being used as a reference model, is it the Government’s intent that the corresponding suite of Microsoft products should be part of the technical solution?
This was not the intent.  Microsoft Operations Framework was chosen as a reference model since it was the most relevant and thorough implementation of ITIL practices the Government was able to identify.
40. Page 68 of 91:  In Section L.2.3, Performance and Quality Management, which details what is to be included in our proposal regarding Factor 2, Management Approach, subfactor 1, the Gov is also requiring the following: 

"…the Offeror shall submit two draft contract clauses for possible insertion into Section H of the contract that address the positive and negative incentive structure for meeting or not meeting the SLAs…”
Please confirm that the Gov wants these clauses included in our response to Volume II/Factor 2, Management Approach, and not in Volume V.5.
Correct, the 2 draft contract clauses should be included in Volume II/Factor 2.
41.Page 75 of 91: Ref: L.7 ORAL PRESENTATION The Offeror's Program Manager and/or other key personnel for CORENet shall give the oral presentation. The presenter will give a brief resume summary to begin each presentation. 

In the DRFP, the above two references are the only mention of key personnel or resumes. Are we to infer that the PM is the only key person, or does the Gov want us to proposal additional people as key? Please confirm that no resumes are required in our proposal.

The Offeror will designate key personnel for the contract.  Per Section L.2.2, the Offeror shall provide contact information for all key personnel.  Resumes are not required.
42. Page 69 of 71: Section L 2.5 speaks of a phase in and a transition period. What is the difference between phase in and transition? Are they concurrent or consecutive?
They are concurrent.  “Transition” refers to the transition from one contract and contractor to the follow-on contract and contractor; “Phase-In” refers to the full implementation of the SLAs and OLAs.  Per Section L.2.5 of the DRFP, pages 69 and 70, “the proposal shall demonstrate to the Government the Offeror's ability to phase-in from the current contract to full assumption of CORENet responsibility” and the “Offeror's ability to effect a smooth but timely transition from the Time and Materials task orders under the current contract to the performance-based task orders that will be issued under this new contract.”
43.
Is it the Government’s intent to issue all task orders excluding hardware/software and travel as Fixed-Price Incentive (FPI) type awards or are there going to be provisions for cost plus and T&M awards where the requirements may not be as clearly defined?
As stated in the DRFP Section B.1 the Government anticipates the award of an IDIQ contract, using Fixed-Price Incentive and Cost Reimbursable type task orders.  The Government does not anticipate the inclusion of Cost Plus labor CLINs.  The Government intends to avoid T&M type pricing arrangements as these are the least preferred contract types.

44.
Page 70, Section L.3.0 states “Offerors are cautioned to submit only past performance data performed by the small business Offeror or performed by a team member that is also a small business in order to be considered for award.”  This seems overly restricted given that small businesses had to rely on their own past performance during the RFI phase.  It would seem, that Offerors should be able to include past performance for a subcontractor even if they are a large business but they would still be evaluated in accordance with section M that gives more weight to the primes past performance.  Can we submit large business teammates past performance?
This restriction is incorrect and this section will be amended.  The Offeror can submit past performance from any partner; the only requirement for past performance is that if the partner has multiple business units, the past performance must be from the business unit teaming with the Offeror.
45.
Page 69, Section L.2.4 states that 

The Offeror will demonstrate that it has developed a mature process for measuring quality in performing IT support services by documenting the quality management certifications and awards that it holds.  Relevant certifications and awards include:

o        Information Technology Infrastructure Library (ITIL)

o        Information Technology Service Management (ITSM) 

o        Carnegie Mellon University - Software Engineering Institute’s Capability Maturity Model (SEI-CMM) level III certification level within any of the designated CMM categories.

o        ISO 9000 Series Certification

o        Deming Quality Award

o        Baldridge Award

o        President’s Quality Award

Page 86 states:

The Offeror must have achieved certification at the regional level and from an independent rating activity that used criteria from an official source in at least one of the following three areas: 

o        Information Technology Infrastructure Library (ITIL)

o        Information Technology Service Management (ITSM) 

o        Carnegie Mellon University - Software Engineering Institute’s Capability Maturity Model (SEI-CMM) level III certification level within any of the designated CMM categories

The Offeror can exceed the standard, if, in addition to the above, it has achieved additional professionally-recognized industry quality certifications or awards such as:   

o        ISO 9000 Series Certification

o        Deming Quality Award

o        Baldridge Award

o        President’s Quality Award

Given that the majority of the effort is for engineering and IT services management and delivery and ISO 9001:2000 is more appropriate than CMMi for this type of work, would the Government consider having ISO 9000 series as an acceptable certification in the “must” category?
Yes.  The Government will review this section for the relevance and prioritization of the certifications and awards.
46.  Page 70 of 91, L.3.2 Section 2 - Customer Assessment indicates 4 past performance efforts, but section L.3.1 requires 5. Please clarify the intent, should offers submit 4 or 5 customer assessments?
Per Section l.3.1, the Offeror can submit up to five past performance efforts.  Section L.3.2 will be amended. 

47.  Section L page 76, requires that “all personnel assigned to this contract must be United States Citizens and must have been granted a Top Secret clearance.” Can support personnel not performing classified work be assigned to this contract without a clearance?
This section is incorrect and will be amended to reflect the following requirements:  All personnel assigned to this contract must be United States citizens.  All personnel whose duty station will be on-site at government facilities must have a Secret clearance.  Key personnel, even if not working on site at government facilities, must have a Secret clearance.  Select personnel will require Top Secret or TS/SCI clearances.  Interim clearances will normally suffice.  In addition, contractor personnel who work on-site at government facilities and have administrator's access to the CORENet will be required to obtain ADP Level I access in accordance with DoD 5200.1-R.  All other contractor personnel who work on-site at government facilities and have access to the CORENet will be required to obtain ADP level II access.  

48.  Section B starting with page 5, several item numbers (example page 5, it goes from Item number 0007 to Item number 00011) are skipped between option years. Is it the Government’s intent to add additional CLINS in the final RFP? 

The CLIN numbering ties the base period tasks with the corresponding tasks in the option year periods.  It is not the Government’s intent to add CLINs; however, the Government reserves the right to do so. 
49.  As of June 2006, there are approximately 8,550 users of the CORENet. 

a.
What is the current user count in March of 2008?
There are approximately 8,600 users of CORENet as of March 2008.
b.
How many users does the Government project at contract award in early 2009?
 This number will most likely remain stable; there is a small chance it could increase by about 300 users if there is an accelerated integration with the JTF/GNO network.
c.
Does the Government have a future projection on user counts throughout the term of this contract?
The Government does not have a future projection at this time beyond the additional 300 users to appear sometime between now and FY10 with the integration of the JTF/GNO network.
50.  In attachment J.1, Technical Architecture, it states phase 1 will have Program Management, Configuration Management and Engineering support to be provided worldwide, but Operations support is only to be provided within the National Capital Region. How will operations services be provided to the remaining 12 locations in the United States and 13 OCONUS locations during phase 1? Who will be providing these services? Is there a contractor supporting this effort?
Although the DISA Information Systems Center provides the enterprise-level services described above for all CORENet sites, DISA customer organizations perform the operational support at the non-NCR sites.  Each DISA organization determines its service strategy for the site(s) it supports, using internal Government resources and contracted resources as necessary.  Each organization uses its own contract vehicle for required services. 

51.  There appears to be no definitive Service Level Agreements defined. Since this is partial managed services contract in phase 1, 


a.
please provide and define the current Service Level Agreements in use
There are no SLAs in place under the present contract, which is performed at a best-effort level.  The organizational structure, which has contractors and Government resources sharing tasks, precludes use of SLAs.

b.
and does the Government anticipate these Service Level Agreements to remain in use throughout phase 1.
The Offeror is to develop the SLAs and OLAs to be used during Phase I as part of the proposal and Performance Work Statement.
52.  Page 71 and 72, references providing copies of our proposal to our DCAA office. Are we right to assume that this only includes the pricing portion of our proposal?
Yes.  See section L.4.2 (3) - only cost/price proposals are to be submitted to DCAA.  

53.  Please provide the number of FTE’s currently supporting this effort by MOF Quadrant.
(Answer amended 3/20/08)
The current number of FTEs supporting DISANet is approximately 94 Government and 99 Anvicom contractor personnel.  The existing organizational structure does not correspond with the MOF Quadrant concept, and we do not have at this time an accurate mapping of FTEs to MOF quadrants.  An organization chart and additional information mapping FTEs to tasks will be provided with the final RFP.
54.  What are the current FTE’s and Role supporting the Help Desk environment?
There are 9 FTEs at present in our NCR Call Center.  The break-out is as follows:

· 01 x Call Center Manager
· 01 x RightAnswers Self Service Knowledge Base Portal manager
· 01 x Help Desk Team Leader
· 05 x Help Desk Technicians 
· 01 x Help Desk Technician/Knowledge Base system administrator

55. How is support handled for remote locations under each tier?  In addition, language support – are all levels speaking in the English language?  

(Answer amended 3/12/08)
Remote location support varies dependent upon its size and the level and amount of local support available.  In general, Tier One support is available from both the local site and the centralized Call Center in the NCR, although only a small number of remote sites have a formal Help Desk process.  Some level of Tier Two support (operational troubleshooting by system administrators, desk-side user support) is provided at the local site, but Tier “2.5” support can be provided from the NCR for smaller sites with minimal system administration support.  Tier 3 support is, in general, provided by the Integration and Implementation resources in the NCR.  Tier 4 vendor support can be accessed through the NCR, or directly by remote sites, in the latter case such as for warranty-based support for client systems.
All remote sites are located at US military installations, and all support is provided by English-speaking personnel.
56.  Under the Certification and Accreditation section, what percentages of systems are in the re-certification phase?
Three-year re-accreditation of the two major systems comprising about 90% of the DISC accreditation effort has been recently completed.  Two smaller systems comprising another 5-7% of the effort will be accredited within the next 90 days. 
57.  How is the current certification documentation being archived? 

The DISA Office of the CIO is responsible for storing and managing all DISA development, active and archived systems accreditation information in the CIO Certification and Accreditation Database.
58.  Under the Incident Response section, does this include security monitoring responsibilities?
Section II.E.6 in the SOO, Information Assurance Support Objectives, and the criteria in Sections L.1.5, Information Assurance Support and M.3.1.3, Subfactor 3 – Information Assurance, are presently being re-evaluated and will be amended in the final RFP.  This issue will be clarified at that time. 

59.  Does this include emerging threat assessment?
See answer to #58.
60.  Under the Network Monitoring section, is this RFP to assume management of the current NOC?
Yes, this would entail assuming management of the CORENet NCR NOC, presently designated as the DISANet Control Center 

61.  What percentages of systems are in the re-certification phase?
Three-year re-accreditation of the two major systems comprising about 90% of the DISC accreditation effort has been recently completed.  Two smaller systems comprising another 5-7% of the effort will be accredited within the next 90 days.
62.  How is the current certification documentation being archived?

The DISA Office of the CIO is responsible for storing and managing all DISA development, active and archived systems accreditation information in the CIO Certification and Accreditation Database.
63.  Usually the responsibility of Incident Response function is limited to the resolution and root cause analysis of incidents as escalated by the team responsible for the SOC function. The draft-RFP references identification and that could refer to SOC responsibilities and/or emerging threat assessment/management. 
a.       Does this include security monitoring responsibilities?
See answer to #58.
b.       And does this include emerging threat assessment?
See answer to #58.
64.  Is it the Government’s intention to evaluate only the Prime Contractor’s past performance or both the Prime and Subcontractor’s past performance as indicated in the Section L.3.0 on page 70 of 91 in the DRFP?
Per Section L.3.0 on page 70 of 91 in the DRFP, it is the Government’s intention to evaluate both the Prime and Subcontractor’s past performance.  Information indicating or implying otherwise elsewhere in the DRFP will be amended.  In addition, language will be inserted to clarify that the subcontractor should be a critical subcontractor, and that if the subcontractor has multiple business units, the past performance must be by the business unit teaming with the contractor to be deemed relevant.
65.   Other than the DISANet incumbent Anvicom (now Command Federal based on acquisition), who is no longer an 8a Small Business, have you identified a competitive field of companies that possess all of the necessary past performance that is equivalent in size, scope and complexity of the CORENet Program? If not, would DISA be willing to consider allowing a broader field of companies to compete in this procurement by:

Removing the 8(a) requirement and allowing all companies that meet the size requirements of 541519 to compete for this work and evaluating the qualifications of the entire team along with the qualifications of the prime, OR

Changing the NAICS to 517110 and evaluating the qualifications of the entire team along with the qualifications of the prime?
Market research has determined that there is sufficient competition within the 8(a) Small Business community for this acquisition.  DISA will not remove the 8(a) requirement.  However, the NAICS code under which the Pre-Solicitation Notice and Draft RFP were published was incorrect.  The correct NAICS code for the CORENet acquisition is 541513, and the Final RFP will be adjusted accordingly.
66.  Will the Government consider offers from companies who meet the criteria for the “Information Technology Value Added Resellers” exception to the $23M size standard under 541519?
Refer to answer #65.  The Information Technology Value Added Resellers exception does not apply to NAICS code 541513.
67.  B.1, of the RFP, states “This is an Indefinite-Delivery/Indefinite-Quantity (ID/IQ) contract, using Fixed-Price Incentive (FPI) and Cost Reimbursable type task orders”
· The provided CLINS are for only FFP or COST tasks associated with COTS or Hardware purchase. Was there expected to be any cost reimbursable task orders outside just purchases?

At this time, the Government anticipates that the only Cost-Reimbursable Task Orders or CLINs will be for hardware/software procurement and travel.
68.  SOO, pg19 of RFP, C. Contract Objectives #4 requires IMP/IMS & EV analysis for non-FFP tasks but see Question #67 above.
The RFP and SOO will be changed to require IMP/IMS & EV analysis for all tasks regardless of the pricing structure of the task.

69.  SOO, pg21 of RFP, E. Technical Objective #6 lists a mix of requirements and objectives.
This observation could also apply to D.8 on pg. 20 of the RFP, Management Objective #8 of the SOO.    Information Assurance (IA) requirements are mandatory because DoD has developed an in-depth IA architecture that identifies the detailed IA requirements for and maps out the specific IA processes to be deployed by all DoD departments, commands and agencies.
70.  Section L.2.3 Performance and Quality Management, pg 68, requires “To this end, the contractor shall create a Performance Work Statement (PWS) following the CORENet PWS Template in Section J, Attachment 7.  PWS Sections 3 and 4 shall contain sub-sections for each Service Management Function (SMF) in Table 1 of the CORENet Statement of Objectives (SOO) that is identified as being a “Contractor” or “Shared” responsibility”.
· Two of these items for the subsections referenced, are the QAP and QASP. Our recommendation approach would be to have one QAP and one QASP for CORENet with addendums representing QAP and QASP items unique to that specific SMF under the PWS sections 3 and 4 or have them directly incorporated into the QAP and QASP but referenced to the appropriate PWS SMF.
The Government agrees that a single QAP and QASP are to be developed for the CORENet, and that they should not be identified as a component of each SLA.  The Government will determine the means to identify any SLA-unique QAP and QASP information and modify the RFP as necessary.
71.  Section L2.5 Phase-In Transition, pg. 69, requires “The proposal shall demonstrate to the Government the Offerors ability to effect a smooth but timely transition from the Time and Materials task orders under the current contract to the performance-based task orders that will be issued under this new contract”.
· Under the current T&M contract does is the contractor/Government work split as identified in CORENet Microsoft Operations Framework, as specified in Table 1.  If the work is isn’t the same can the Government supply the current staffing plan for assignments/quantity.

Under the current T&M contract, government and contractor personnel are integrated at the team level, so there is no distinction in responsibilities in terms of actual activities or SMF processes, except for a limited number of inherently governmental functions.  Government personnel perform all team leader and management roles.  The Government is in the process of planning an MOF evaluation of the IT support organization and processes, so it does not yet have the necessary data to identify the existing service processes and workload in terms of SMFs.  Attachments to the RFP will provide information on activities, processes and workloads, but not specifically in terms of the MOF and SMFs.  
72.  Section L6.2.2 Page Limitations, Volume II Management Approach – 25 pages

· Section L2.3 Performance and Quality Management requires that a PWS be created. Based on the page count indicated, the PWS is allocated 45 pages, which do not count against the 25 management pages.

· Under L2.3 we are required to provide, in the PWS, an SLA, OLA, QAP and QASP for each SMF designated as contractor or shared, there are 18 such SMFs. The provided templates indicate that as a MINIMUM an SLA and OLA are each approximately one page, an award fee evaluation factor is a half page, and the QAP and QASP are at least two pages each.  Based on our estimation it appears the response would need to be 117 pages.

The maximum page allocation for the PWS in Section L.6.2.2 will be reviewed and modified as necessary to allow all required information to be provided.  Per the existing direction to guidance for providing QAP and QASP information at the SLA level, please see the answer to Question #70. 
73.  Section L6.3.3 Tables, Charts, etc – Is the 11x17 reference considered a foldout or one page written tables, charts, etc.?
The term “foldout” refers to any page greater than 8” x 11” in size, up to 11” x 17”.  Any such sheet will be considered two pages.
74.  Section L6.3.4 Cross Referencing – Would Government allow a one page cross reference for each volume that did not go against the listed page count. Additionally, could you exclude the evaluation factors to objectives matrix provided in Section L1 from the page count of each volume?
Yes, the Government will allow a one page cross reference for each volume that does not count against the page counts, and will also exclude the evaluation factors to objectives matrix from the page count of each volume.
75.  Evaluation Factor 2 – Management Approach, subfactor 1, element 1 - Quality Assurance Plan (QAP) and Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan (QASP) pg. 85. 

· “The Offeror shall submit a QAP and QASP proposal that identify adequate processes….”. Is the Government requesting an executable QAP and QASP or how we would develop and provide?
The Offeror must develop and submit a fully executable contractor Quality Assurance Plan.   The Government is requesting that the Offeror also submit a proposed Government QASP, since the QASP must interrelate with the performance metrics and QAP.  This is in accordance with FAR 37.6, which states that either the Government or the offeror can write the QASP, so long as the Government reviews and approves the offeror-provided QASP prior to contract award.   
76.  L3.0 Volume III-Factor 4, Past Performance: ii) Part 2-Overview of the Statement of Work – Requests that attachment J-12 be completed for each past performance, it is 6 pages long and the page limit is 5 pages. Request that J-12 be exempt from the 5 pages per past performance contract.
A page limit will be retained for Volume III, Past Performance, but will be amended as necessary to accurately reflect the amount of data that is being requested in L.3.1, Section 1.  Please note that the content and length of attachment J-12 is open to review and revision prior to release of the final RFP.
77.  Section L.1.6, pg 66, first bullet. Can the Government provide the "normal business hours at each facility?
The “normal” or “standard” business hours in the NCR for which Call Center support will be required is 0630-1800 on Federal workdays.  Remote sites set operating hours on an individual basis; this is typically 0700-1700.  Updated information on remote sites will be provided in the final RFP.
78.  Section L.1.6, pg 67, sixth bullet. What is the existing Call Center software suite?
The NCR Call Center software suite is Cisco IP Call Center (IPCC) Express.
79.  Section L.2.5, 2nd paragraph. Full phase-in should be accomplished in no more than 3 months...while next paragraph states "Full transition should be accomplished in no more than 6 months.   Request clarification?
These statements are correct.  “Transition” refers to the transition from one contract and contractor to the follow-on contract and contractor; “Phase-In” refers to the full implementation of the SLAs and OLAs.  Per Section L.2.5 of the DRFP, pages 69 and 70, “the proposal shall demonstrate to the Government the Offeror's ability to phase-in from the current contract to full assumption of CORENet responsibility” and the “Offeror's ability to effect a smooth but timely transition from the Time and Materials task orders under the current contract to the performance-based task orders that will be issued under this new contract.”
80.  RFP, Page 15 – ref. Appendix A – Network Architecture – Does it include DECCs?
DISA DECCs, managed by the DISA Computer Services Directorate, are not part of the CORENet.

81.  May the Offeror propose a consolidated call center capability?
Yes, the Offeror may propose a consolidated call center capability. 
82.  RFP E, Technical Objectives, Network Monitoring. If DISC would like an improved network monitoring solution is an existing GFE solution acceptable?
Yes, it could be acceptable.  Enhancement of the network monitoring capabilities would follow the technology insertion process.

83.  Is the DISC call center integrated with TMS?
The DISC Call Center is not integrated with other DoD trouble management systems, nor is it integrated with Remedy TMS.
84.  Services and Workload Statistics: 

a) Tab 2 - Daily: The data is undated. Will the Government provide the date range for the data? If the data is more than 3 months old will the Government also provide current data?
A date range will be provided; updated information will be provided in the final RFP as available.  

b) Tab 3- weekly: Jan – Sept of what year? Will the Government provide current data if this is more than 3 months old?
This is data for 2007; updated information will be provided in the final RFP as available.
c) Tab 4 - Open TT & RIDS: As of what date?
This is a snapshot from September 2007; updated information will be provided in the final RFP as available
d) Tab 5 – Data is 15 months old. Will the Government provide current data?

Updated information will be provided in the final RFP as available.
e) Tab 6 – Is the 2006 survey the most recent survey.
No, Call Center/Help Desk data is available through Feb 2008 and will be included in the final RFP. 
f) Tab 7 Operational tasks: What is the date of this data? Is more current data available?
This data is from September 2007; updated information will be provided in the final RFP as available.
Tab 8 Work Breakdown – What is the date of this data? Is more current data available?

This data is from September 2007; updated information will be provided in the final RFP as available.
85.  What software is DISA currently using to maintain and ensure enterprise baseline configuration of authenticated objects connecting to the domain?
The DISC will be deploying a network authentication/access control service on the CORENet later in CY08.  This will ensure that only authenticated objects can connect to not only the domain, but to the TCP/IP network, and ensure that the baseline configuration and IA configuration of authenticated objects is maintained.  The NAC will work in conjunction with Altiris Client Manager in maintaining the configuration.
86.  In the Draft RFP, section labeled Mandatory Security Requirement:  It states that the offer will also have to provide storage facilities at the contractor's locations for classified material up to and including Top Secret.   

Can the Government confirm that this is in fact a requirement to provide classified material storage? 
This statement is incorrect; there is no requirement for classified (Secret or TS) storage space at contractor sites.   A Top Secret facility clearance is required in support of the contractor employing personnel with TS or TS/SCI clearances.   The RFP will be amended to reflect this. 
87.  In File J3 – Service and Workload Statistics Tab Help Desk Survey.

a) This tab provides percentages for customer satisfaction results. Does DISA have customer satisfaction performance targets?  And if you did, what are they?
DISA has not established a firm customer satisfaction performance target, and the Offerors are to propose SLAs and performance metrics, including this target.  However, the Government may identify minimum service levels for critical metrics in the final RFP, based on industry best/most common practices.  In the case of customer satisfaction, this would most likely be 90%.   
b) The DISANET Operations Task Tab lists 191.235 FTE’s, while the DISANet Work Breakout tab lists 185.135 FTE’s.   Which number is the most accurate?
These files will be updated for the final RFP; a more accurate FTE count will be provided at that time.  
88.  Please clarify the differences in Responsibility between the MOF Table in Section I.C of the Statement of Work (page 17 of 91) and the CORENET Field Site Responsibility Matrix in Appendix J-2. In the MOF Table, Availability Management is identified as “Shared (Note 1)” while the J-2 matrix states this is a “Contractor” responsibility. Similarly differences were noted with respect to Incident Management, Capacity Management, and IT Security Management.
Responsibilities are correct as listed in the MOF Table in Section I.C of the Statement of Work (pages 17 and 18 of 91).  The CORENET Field Site Responsibility Matrix in Appendix J-2 will be amended.
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